
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

                                                                              
 
 
 
 

MEETING OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
Thursday, September 3, 2015 – 3:00 p.m. 
Isadore A. Shrager Boardroom – M2-01 

 
Table of Contents 

 
 

 
(1) Agenda        Pages 2-3  
              
(2) Proceedings and Minutes of Decisions and Resolutions 
    Meeting of June 4, 2015      Pages 4-10  
         
(3) Gifts and Grants       Pages 11-14  
              
(4) 2015-16 Board of Trustees Meeting Dates    Page 15  
        
(5) Minutes of the Audit Committee of June 10, 2015   Pages 16-58 
 
(6) Minutes of the Business Affairs Committee of June 17, 2015 Pages 59-77  
 
 
 
        
 

######## 
 

1



 
 

 

 

 
 

 
MEETING OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

AGENDA 
Thursday, September 3, 2015 – 3:00 p.m. 

Isadore A. Shrager Boardroom, M2-1 
 
(1) Executive Session 
 
(2) Consent Agenda  
 

(a) Proceedings and Minutes of Decisions and Resolutions 
Meeting of June 4, 2015 

(b) Gifts and Grants 
(c) 2015-16 Property and Casualty Insurance Renewal Program 
(d) Disposal of Fixed Asset Equipment  
(e) General Contractor Construction Biology Prep Room – Northeast Regional Center 
(f) Development Advisory Services Contract  Relating for Public Private Partnerships (P3) 
(g) Selection of Electrical Contractor for the Performance Theater 
 

(3) Report of the Nominating Committee for Board Officers   (A) 
 

(4) Report of the Chair 
 
(5) Foundation Report 
 
(6) Report of the President 
 
(7) New Business 
 
(8) Next Meeting:   Thursday, October 1, 2015 – 3:00 p.m. 
      Isadore A. Shrager Boardroom, M2-1 
 
 
Future Committee Meetings: 
 

Student Outcomes:    Thursday, September 3, 2015 
      1:30 p.m. – M2-34     

        
Business Affairs:    Wednesday, September 16, 2015 
      9:00 a.m. – Isadore A. Shrager Boardroom, M2-1 
 
Audit Committee:    Wednesday, September 30, 2015 
      9:00 a.m. – Isadore A. Shrager Boardroom, M2-1 

2



 
 

 
Upcoming Events 
 
 College Closed due to World Meeting  September 25-26, 2015 
    of Families  
  
 45th Annual ACCT Leadership Congress October 14-17, 2015 
       San Diego, CA 
 
 PA Commission for Community Colleges  November 17, 2015 
                Southeast Regional Trustees Meeting 5:30 p.m. – 8:30 p.m. 
         Community College of Philadelphia 
       Klein Cube 
  
  
 
                                                                  ################## 

3



COMMUNITY COLLEGE OF PHILADELPHIA 
Proceedings of the Meeting of the Board of Trustees 

Thursday, June 4, 2015 – 3:00 p.m. 
 
Present: Mr. Bergheiser, presiding; Ms. Biemiller, Ms. Hernández Vélez, Ms. Holland, 

Mr. Lassiter, Dr. Rényi, Representative Roebuck, Ms. Sparandara, Ms. Tsai, Mr. 
White, Dr. Generals, Ms. Bauer, Mr. Brown, Ms. DiGregorio, Mr. Eapen, Dr. 
Gay, Dr. Hirsch, Mr. G. Murphy, Mr. T. Murphy, and Mr. Spiewak 

 
 
(1) Executive Session 
 
 The Executive Session was devoted to a discussion of budget and other College issues. 
 
(2) Consent Agenda 
 
 Mr. Bergheiser requested approval of the Consent Agenda: 
 

(a) Proceedings and Minutes of Decisions and Resolutions 
Meeting of May 7, 2015 

(b) Gifts and Grants 
(c) Construction Management, A.A.S. Audit 
(d) Facilities Management-Construction A.A.S. and 

Facilities Management-Design A.A.S. Audit 
(e) Computer Assisted Design Technology A.A.S. and Computer Assisted 

Design Technology Academic Certificate 
(f) HVAC Enhancements-Rooms BG-25 and BG-28 
(g) Architectural and Engineering Services Proposal for 

Vertical Transportation in West Building 
(h) 17th Street Landscaping Contracts 
(i) Renovations to Rooms M2-35 and M2-36 

 
Ms. Hernández Vélez moved, with Mr. Lassiter seconding, that the Board approve the 

Consent Agenda.  The motion carried unanimously. 
 
(3) 2015-16 Operating and Capital College Budget 
 
 Mr. White reported that the Business Affairs Committee, at its meeting of May 20, 2015,  
reviewed and discussed the 2015-16 Operating and Capital College Budget and was 
recommending its approval by the Board of Trustees.  
 
 Mr. White moved, with Ms. Holland seconding, that the Board approve the 2015-16 
Operating and Capital College Budget.  The motion carried unanimously. 
 
 Ms. Biemiller stated that she was very grateful for the manner in which the 2015-16 
budget process was conducted.  She stated that members of the Board were provided with all 

4



related budget information prior to Board approval.  Ms. Biemiller commended Dr. Generals, 
Mr. White, and staff on their excellent work in the preparation of the budget. 
 
(3a) Legal Services for Labor Matters 
 
 Mr. Bergheiser reported that a Request for Qualifications (RFQ) was sent to five law 
firms that have labor relations division.  The College Evaluation Committee, consisting of 
Trustees and administrators, was recommending the law firm of Cozen O’Conner to represent 
the College in labor negotiations with the College’s three employee bargaining units for 
successor agreements to the current contracts which expire August 31, 2016. 
 
 Mr. Lassiter moved, with Mr. White seconding, that the Board approve Cozen O’Connor 
to represent the College in labor negotiations.  The motion carried unanimously.   
 
(4) Report of the Chair 
 
(4a) Nominating Committee for Board Officers 
 
 Mr. Bergheiser reported that he was appointing the following Board members to the 
Nominating Committee for Board Officers: 
   
  Ms. Lydia Hernández Vélez  Chair 
  Ms. Stella Tsai   Member 
  Mr. Chad Lassiter   Member 
 
 Mr. Bergheiser stated that the Nominating Committee will be seeking nominations 
through July 31, 2015.  The Committee will report back at the September 3, 2015 meeting of the 
Board of Trustees. 
 
(4b) Board of Trustees Meetings 
 
 Mr. Bergheiser reminded members of the Board that the Board will not meet during the 
months of July and August.  The next meeting of Board of Trustees is scheduled for Thursday, 
September 3, 2015. 
 
 Mr. Bergheiser noted that today was the final Board meeting for Ms. Holland.  On behalf 
of the Board of Trustees, Mr. Bergheiser thanked Ms. Holland for her contributions to Board 
deliberations, and grateful for her eloquence and leadership during her tenure as a member of the 
Board of Trustees. 
 
 Ms. Holland stated that it had been a pleasure for her to serve as a member of the Board 
of Trustees of Community College of Philadelphia.  She stated that she enjoyed working with 
fellow Board members as well as College staff and faculty.  Ms. Holland stated that access to 
higher education is very important to her, and that she will continue to be involved in education 
in her new capacity. 
  

5



 
(5) Foundation Report 
 

 Mr. Murphy reported that he and the Institutional Advancement staff were closing the 
College’s biggest private-dollar fundraising year. Members of the Board congratulated Mr. 
Murphy on his accomplishment. 
 
(6) Report of the President 
 
 Dr. Generals called the Board’s attention to his memorandum outlining his 
activities/meetings for the month of May.   
 
(6a) Pew Report 
 
 Dr. Generals reported that he had forwarded to the Board a copy of the Pew Charitable 
Trust Philadelphia Research initiative report of the practices and outcomes of Community 
College of Philadelphia.  Dr. Generals stated that overall the report was balanced.  The report 
affirms the work and dedication of faculty and staff, and the College efforts and commitment to 
access and opportunity for those who would not have an opportunity for higher education.  Dr. 
Generals stated that the College is committed to student completion and graduation and will 
continue efforts to implement initiatives to increase student success.   
 
 There was a brief discussion by the Board regarding the article in the Philadelphia 
Inquirer on the Pew Report which focused primarily on the negative aspects of the Report.  
Members of the Board urged Dr. Generals to write an opinion piece for the Philadelphia Inquirer 
and Business Journal focusing on the importance of Community College of Philadelphia to the 
City of Philadelphia.   
 
(6b) American Association of Community Colleges 
 
 Dr. Generals reported that he had been appointed as a member of the American 
Association of Community Colleges’ Commission on Global Education.  The appointment term 
is July 1, 2015 to June 30, 2018. 
 
(6c) Announcements 
 
 Dr. Generals reported that the College has been designated a Gold Fit-Friendly Worksite 
by the American Heart Association.  As a Gold level award recipient, the College has fulfilled 
key criteria and demonstrated a strong commitment to providing a healthy workplace for 
employees.   
 
(7) New Business 
 
 Dr. Rényi noted that July 1, 2015 will be a year that Dr. Generals assumed the position as 
president of the College.  She stated that it was exciting to have Dr. Generals at the College 

6



working with the Board of Trustees and staff, and that she looked forward to continuing to work 
with him and the Board of Trustees for the future of the College. 
 
 Mr. Lassiter stated that it was a pleasure to work with Dr. Generals, members of the 
Board of Trustees and staff of the College.  He stated that he appreciated the excellent leadership 
and transparency that Dr. Generals had provided the past year, and looked forward to continuing 
to work with him and the Board of Trustees on behalf of the College. 
 
(8) Next Meeting 
 
 The next meeting of the Board is scheduled for Thursday, September 3, 2015 at 3:00 p.m. 
in the Isadore A. Shrager Boardroom.   
 
 The meeting adjourned at 4:30 p.m. 
  

7



COMMUNITY COLLEGE OF PHILADELPHIA 
Meeting of the Board of Trustees 

Thursday, June 4, 2015 – 3:00 p.m. 
MINUTES OF DECISIONS AND RESOLUTIONS 

 
 
Present: Mr. Bergheiser, presiding; Ms. Biemiller, Ms. Hernández Vélez, Ms. Holland, 

Mr. Lassiter, Dr. Rényi, Representative Roebuck, Ms. Sparandara, Ms. Tsai, Mr. 
White, Dr. Generals, Ms. Bauer, Mr. Brown, Ms. DiGregorio, Mr. Eapen, Dr.  
Gay, Dr. Hirsch, Mr. G. Murphy, Mr. T. Murphy, and Mr. Spiewak 

 
 
(1) Executive Session 
 
 The Executive Session was devoted to a discussion of budget and other College issues. 
 
(2) Consent Agenda 
 
 The Board approved the following Consent Agenda: 

 
(a) Proceedings and Minutes of Decisions and Resolutions 

Meeting of May 7, 2015 
(b) Gifts and Grants 
(c) Construction Management, A.A.S. Audit 
(d) Facilities Management-Construction A.A.S. and 

Facilities Management-Design A.A.S. Audit 
(e) Computer Assisted Design Technology A.A.S. and Computer Assisted 

Design Technology Academic Certificate 
(f) HVAC Enhancements-Rooms BG-25 and BG-28 
(g) Architectural and Engineering Services Proposal for 

Vertical Transportation in West Building 
(h) 17th Street Landscaping Contracts 
(i) Renovations to Rooms M2-35 and M2-36 

 
(3) 2015-16 Operating and Capital College Budget 
 
 The Board approved the 2015-16 Operating and Capital College Budget.   
 
(3a) Legal Services for Labor Matters 
 
 The Board approved Cozen O’Connor to represent the College in labor negotiations.   
 
 
 
 
 

8



(4) Report of the Chair 
 
(4a) Nominating Committee for Board Officers 
 
 The following members of the Board were appointed to the Nominating Committee for 
Board Officers: 
   
  Ms. Lydia Hernández Vélez  Chair 
  Ms. Stella Tsai   Member 
  Mr. Chad Lassiter   Member 
 
(4b) Board of Trustees Meetings 
 
 The Board of Trustees will not meet during the months of July and August.   
 
 The Board thanked Ms. Holland for her contributions to Board deliberations during her 
tenure as a member of the Board of Trustees. 
 
(5) Foundation Report 
 

 The Institutional Advancement staff is in the process of closing the College’s biggest 
private-dollar fundraising year. 
 
(6) Report of the President 
 
 Dr. Generals called the Board’s attention to his memorandum outlining his 
activities/meetings for the month of May.   
 
(6a) Pew Report 
 
 The Board reviewed and discussed the Pew Charitable Trust Philadelphia Research 
initiative report of the practices and outcomes of Community College of Philadelphia.   
 
(6b) American Association of Community Colleges 
 
 Dr. Generals was appointed to the American Association of Community Colleges 
Commission on Global Education.  The appointment term is July 1, 2015 to June 30, 2018. 
 
(6c) Announcements 
 
 The College has been designated a Gold Fit-Friendly Worksite by the American Heart 
Association.   
 
 
 
 

9



(7) New Business 
 
 Dr. Rényi noted that July 1, 2015 will be a year that Dr. Generals assumed the position as 
president of the College.  She stated that it was exciting to have Dr. Generals at the College 
working with the Board of Trustees and staff, and that she looked forward to continuing to work 
with him and the Board of Trustees for the future of the College. 
 
 Mr. Lassiter stated that it was a pleasure to work with Dr. Generals, members of the 
Board of Trustees and staff of the College.  He stated that he appreciated the excellent leadership 
and transparency that Dr. Generals had provided the past year, and looked forward to continuing 
to work with him and the Board of Trustees on behalf of the College. 
 
(8) Next Meeting 
 
 The next meeting of the Board is scheduled for Thursday, September 3, 2015 at 3:00 p.m. 
in the Isadore A. Shrager Boardroom.   
 
 The meeting adjourned at 4:30 p.m. 
  

10



11



12



13



14



 
Community College of Philadelphia 

2015-16 Board of Trustees 
Meeting Dates 

 
 

October 1, 2015 
November 5, 2015 

 
February 4, 2016 

April 7, 2016 
May 5, 2016 
June 2, 2016 

September 1, 2016 
October 6, 2016 

November 3, 2016 
   
 
Time:    3:00 P.M.  
Location:   Main Campus, 1700 Spring Garden St. 

Mint Building 
Isadore A. Shrager Boardroom, M2-1 

 

15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



68



69



70



71



72



73



74



75



76



77


	tableofcontents9.3.15
	agenda 9.3.15
	6.4.15 Board Proceedings
	6.4.15 Board Minutes
	Sept. '15 Gifts & Grants-1
	2015-16 Board Meeting Dates
	6.10.15AuditCommittee
	6.17.15BusinessAffairsminutes



